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The Rock Elementary School is located about two miles southwest
of Cambridge, Maryland on Md. Route 16. It stands at the south-
east corner of the intersection of Md. Route 16 and Bayly Road
and faces the Rock Methodist Church and cemetery from the
opposite side of the road.

The exterior plan of Rock School is characteristic of the many
one-room schoolhouses that were built throughout Maryland from
the early nineteenth to the early twentieth centuries. It is

a rectangular (29 feet by 17 feet), one-story, gable-roofed
frame building with a small one-bay, one-story entrance vesti-
bule on its end facade. The structure is three bays long on
both sides, excluding a single window on both sides of the
projecting vestibule. The six windows on the side elevations
of the main block are of six over six sash while those of the
vestibule are of four over four. On the front of the vestibule
is a centered paneled door; above, within the gable of the main
block, is a small four pane window. (The sash in all of the
windows has been temporarily removed and the openings boarded
shut until current renovations are completed.) The gable roofs
of both parts are wood shingled and have simple boxed cornices
with returns. An open belfry once stood at the front end of
the main roof and is to be replaced. At the opposite end of
the roof ridge stands a brick stove chimney. The building
stands on wood piers, about eighteen inches above ground level.
Several of the piers have been replaced with brick in recent
years.

The interior of Rock School has experienced various minor
alterations and the basic fabric, though deteriorated, appears
to remain fairly intact. The windows are framed by unornamented|
board surrounds. The ceiling is sheathed with narrow beaded
boards and the walls are similarly wainscoted up to the height
of the window sills. The plaster on the walls above the wains-
coting, however, was removed within the last decade and re-
placed with plasterboard. The interior walls of the entrance
vestibule are presently sheathed with horizontal boards which
may or may not be original. None of the early furnishings
remain but three original blackboards still occupy their proper
locations and in the northwest corner there is a cater-cornered
library case.

The site of the Rock School is void of any formally planted
shrubbery or trees. A double privy and a tool shed stand near
the end of the building. Both of these are in poor repair.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

In 1867 the building known as Rock School was moved to its
present location from a site near Church Creek, Dorchester
County. As most of the existing fabric appears to date from
about the mid-and late nineteenth century it is believed
that the bulldlng, when moved, was dismantled and its parts
utilized in the construction of the existing building. If
the structure was moved intact, as an informally prepared
history of the school suggests, then it was probably con-
structed just a few years previous to the move. If the
latter is true then its present appearance, both interior
and exterior, may have resulted from renovations made after
the building was re-sited.

Throughout the remainder of the nineteenth century the build-
ing served as both a church and school until the erection of
the present Rock Methodist Church later in the nineteenth
century. Serving the black residents of the area, it was
presided over by an elected Board of Trustees. The first
President of the Board was Ezekr1§{ Stanley and for many years
the school was called the Stanley Institute in his honor.

The Rock School is one of Maryland's oldest schools organized
and maintained by a black community. The history of this
simple building is thus of immeasurable significance to the
history of black social development in Maryland.

The Rock Community Improvement League, owher of the school

and its site,; is composed of area residents, many of whom

are descended from the school's original founders. The school
represents to them a physical reminder of their heritage and
there is a strongly supported local movement to restore the
building for the use of the League. The school will be main-
tained as a memorial to the many black men who graduated from
this modest facility and went on to become successful in their
various endeavors. Most notable among these personalities is
Dr. Thomag Kiah (1873-1936), who also studied at Cornell and
Columbia Universities and became a principal of the Princess
Anne Academy, now the University of Maryland-Eastern Shore.
Twelve other graduates became Methodist ministers and served
the Delaware Annual Conference.




Records of the Board of Trustees of Stanley Institute

Land Records of Dorchester County

History of Rock School, An Informal Report by William H. Kiah
Acting President, Rock Community Improvement League
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